MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD HELD ON Tuesday, 12th April, 2016

PRESENT:

Councillors: Joanna Christophides (Chair), Tim Gallagher (Vice-Chair), , Patrick Berryman, Bob Hare, Liz McShane and Anne Stennett

Non-Voting Members: Colin Marr (Non-voting), Nigel Willmott (Non-voting) and Councillor Stephen Mann (Observer)

87. FILMING AT MEETINGS

Noted.

88. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Gordon Hutchinson and Bob Kidby.

89. URGENT BUSINESS

NOTED that there would be an item of urgent business, which would be taken at item 24, as it was exempt.

90. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

None.

91. QUESTIONS, DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS

None.

92. MINUTES

i. Alexandra Palace and Park Board – 16 February 2016

RESOLVED that the unrestricted minutes of the Alexandra Palace and Park Board held on 16 February 2016 be approved as an accurate record of the proceedings, subject to the following amendment:

Minute ABO76

Additional sentence to follow point b:

Colin Marr objected to the submission having been made on behalf of the Trust as he felt that there hadn't been adequate consideration by the Board, and asked for his dissent to the submission be minuted.



ii. <u>Joint Alexandra Park & Palace Statutory Advisory Committee and the Alexandra</u> Palace & Park Consultative Committee – 2 February 2016

RESOLVED that the draft minutes of the Joint Alexandra Park & Palace Statutory Advisory Committee and the Alexandra Palace & Park Consultative Committee held on 2 February 2016 be noted.

iii. Alexandra Park & Palace Statutory Advisory Committee - 2 February 2016.

RESOLVED that the draft minutes of the Alexandra Park & Palace Statutory Advisory Committee held on 2 February 2016 be noted.

93. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

RECEIVED the report of Louise Stewart, Chief Executive, Alexandra Park and Palace.

The following arose from discussion of the report:

a. Governance Review

A new Company Secretary, Erica Wilkinson, had been appointed. A draft review scope would be circulated in due course.

b. Business Plan

This would be discussed in the exempt section of the meeting. Once the plan had been approved by the Board, a non-exempt version would be made available for the public.

RESOLVED that

- i. The Board would be consulted electronically on the scope of the Governance Review between Board meetings; and
- ii. The timetable and special Board meeting on Wood Green regeneration be approved.

94. PARK ACTIVITIES

Mark Evison, Park Manager, Alexandra Park and Palace, introduced the report as set

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted.

95. LEARNING AND COMMUNITIES

Emma Dagnes, Deputy Chief Executive, Alexandra Park and Palace, introduced the report as set out.

RESOLVED that

- i. The contents of the report be noted; and
- ii. The continued increase in schools using the Park and Palace and continuing development of engagement with the local community be noted.

96. COMMERCIAL UPDATE

Lucy Fenner, Commercial Director, Alexandra Park and Palace, introduced the report as set out.

RESOLVED that the commercial highlights be noted.

97. NEW-LOOK WEBSITE PRESENTATION

Martin Keane, Head of Marketing and Communications, Alexandra Park and Palace, provided a presentation on the new-look website.

The following arose during discussion:

- a. The existing website was built in 2013, and required updating to suit the changes in the organisation and the increased traffic to the website. The current website was hard to navigate and so a review of functionality was also required.
- b. The current website had an emphasis on events, and the new-look website would make it easier for visitors to view information on all areas of the Park and Palace and the Trust's activities.
- c. The interface would be updated to make it easier to use from a mobile device, and for people to buy tickets for events.

RESOLVED to note the presentation.

98. EAST WING RESTORATION PROJECT

Emma Dagnes, Deputy Chief Executive, Alexandra Park and Palace, introduced the report as set out.

The following arose from discussion of the report:

- a. The team was working with the contractor to retrieve lost time and bring completion back to the original December 2017 date.
- b. The interim Cost Plan showed an adverse variance of £411k from Stage 3 to Stage 4, and value engineering solutions would be explored in order to bring the Cost Plan back in line with Stage 3.
- c. Works carried out so far included undertaking surveys and investigations in order to de-risk the project as much as possible and removal of non-supporting walls and rubble in preparation for the main works to take place.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

99. TRUST FINANCIAL REPORT (AND ANNUAL ACCOUNTS TIMETABLE)

Dorota Dominiczak, Director of Finance and Resources, Alexandra Park and Palace introduced the report as set out.

The following arose from discussion of the report:

- a. Due to the success of the Trading Company, the Gift Aid contribution had increased by £615k to £1,712k.
- b. The £108k spend on the fire alarm system should be the final spend on this area to meet current fire regulations.
- c. With regards to the damage caused by the gas mains works, contact had been made with the company and they will be working with the Park Manager to carry out remedial works.

RESOLVED that

- i) The performance of the Trust and the attached timetable for submitting the annual accounts be noted; and
- ii) A salary increase of 2% for all Trust employees effective from 1st April 2016 be approved.

100. RESERVES POLICY

Dorota Dominiczak, Director of Finance and Resources, Alexandra Park and Palace introduced the report as set out.

The following arose from discussion of the report:

- a. The Trust was required by law to have a draft reserves policy, which should be reviewed annually. Appendix one contained a first draft of the policy, of which a more comprehensive version would be produced at a later date.
- b. In terms of the level of reserves required to cover six months running costs, further work needed to be carried out to establish what this amount is and to identify how the Trust can build this level of reserve.

RESOLVED that

- i) The draft Reserves Policy attached at Appendix 1 be approved; and
- ii) A more comprehensive Reserves Policy shall be presented to the Board at a later stage.

101. STORAGE UNIT PROPOSAL

Russell Eacott, Interim Project Director for the East Wing Restoration Project, presented the proposals for a new storage building in the West Yard.

The following arose from discussion of the report:

- a. If the Board approved the proposal, the team would work with the Council to approve funding through the Capital Programme Board. The Business Plan showed how revenue could be made from the space, and it was noted that if the space was not utilised in some way then the project would need to be financed from other areas within the Palace.
- b. There were time pressures on the project, which would need to be completed by February 2017 to allow the East Wing Restoration Project to continue into Area 7, and to avoid costs of offsite storage.
- c. The scaffold bracing supporting the North Wall was reasonably stable, but it would need replacing at some point in the future.
- d. The function space would have a separate entrance to the main building and so would be available to use alongside functions in the main building.
- e. Louise Stewart agreed that to share the findings of work undertaken by the team demonstrating that no temporary solutions were possible due to the capacity and volume of space required to house and move such major infrastructure, and reiterated to members that the project was time sensitive in relation to the East Wing Restoration Project.
- f. The primary purpose of the building was for storage, however the function room would be multi-functional and would ensure that there was flexibility for event space at the Palace in the future.

RESOLVED that

- i) The contents of the report and the SAC-CC comments regarding the seeking of Planning Permission and Listed Building Consent as considered at their meeting on the 5 April 2016 be noted;
- ii) The Chief Executive be permitted to work with Haringey Council through its project approvals and business case procedure to seek a £2.5m loan to finance the West Yard Storage Project;
- iii) Authority be delegated to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Trust Chair, to finalise details of the Business Case for the project; which the Chair undertook to share with the Board for comment:
- iv) The same governance arrangements to oversee and monitor the project as approved by the Trustees at their meeting of the 18 April 2015 be utilised;
- v) An updated report at a specially convened meeting be received in due course to appoint the contractor to complete the design and build contract for the West Yard Storage Project;
- vi) Clear deadlines and project information be provided to the Trustees; and

- vii) A report of the options appraisal showing that there was no other location for the storage unit including any suitable temporary solutions be circulated to the Board.
- 102. ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD WORK PROGRAMME

RESOLVED that the work programme be noted.

103. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT

There was no such business.

104. FUTURE MEETINGS

NOTED the future meeting dates.

105. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED to exclude the press and public from the meeting as items 20 to 23 contained exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the Local Government Act 1972; Para 1 – information relating to any individual, Para 2 – information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual, Para 3 – information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information), and Para 5 – information in respect of which a claim to legal profession privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.

106. EXEMPT MINUTES

RESOLVED that the exempt minutes of the Alexandra Palace and Park Board held on 16 February 2016 be approved.

107. EXEMPT CHIEF EXECUTIVE REPORT

The recommendations in the report were approved as set out.

108. EXEMPT PROVISION OF ESTATE GUARDING TO ALEXANDRA PALACE.

The recommendations in the report were approved as set out.

109. EXEMPT - CREATIVE WORKSPACE

The recommendations in the report were approved as set out.

110. ANY OTHER EXEMPT BUSINESS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT

There was one late item of business. The recommendations in the report were approved as set out.

CHAIR: Councillor Joanna Christophides
Signed by Chair
Date

